
Public Safety and Emergency Services Committee Minutes for July 27, 2009 
1 

COUNTY OF OSWEGO 
PUBLIC SAFETY AND EMERGENCY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

COUNTY OFFICE, 46 E. BRIDGE STREET, OSWEGO 
July 27, 2009 2:00 PM 

 
 

PRESENT:    STAFF/GUESTS 
Paul Santore, Chair   Phil Church, County Administrator 
Linda Lockwood, Vice Chair Barry Leemann, Legislature Chairman  
Shawn Doyle Pat Egan, Dir. Emergency. Management 
Mary Flett Terry Bennett, Emergency Management Office 
Margaret Kastler   Fred Maxon, Purchasing Director 
Lee Walker, Jr.   John Hinds, Fire Coordinator 
     Legislators Bob Hayes and Art Gearsbeck 
     Robert Lighthall, Undersheriff 
ABSENT:    Mike Allen, E-911 Director 
Legislator Gardner   Deborah Meyer, Probation Director  
     John Kruk, County Treasurer 
     Ted Jerrett, Clerk of the Legislature 
     Terry Wilbur, Hannibal 

 
Committee Chair Santore called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM.  
 
1. Minutes:  The minutes of June 11th and June 22nd were presented. 

Motion to approve:  Leg. Walker 
 Second:  Leg. Kastler   

Vote: Unanimous 
 
2. Fire School Update:   Fire Coordinator John Hinds noted that repairs to the Fire Tower would be 

completed next week and that training in the full tower is already scheduled. Mr. Hinds also 
presented an update of activities of his office (copy attached). 

 
3. Probation:  

A. Budget Modification – Domestic Violence 
Probation Director Debbie Meyer requested a budget modification accepting and allocating a 
100% federally funded $25,000 Domestic Violence Grant extension (until June 30, 2010). 
Motion to approve:  Leg. Kastler 

 Second:  Leg. Flett  
Vote: Unanimous 

 
B. Organizational Chart 
Director Meyer presented and reviewed with the Committee an updated organizational chart of the 
Probation Department. 

   
4. E-911: 

A. Contract Extension – Communication System Project Management 
911 Director Mike Allen explained that the consultant contract with Charles Gabriel to oversee 
data collection and coordinate engineering services for the new communications system will expire 
in July 2009.  Mr. Allen requested support for extending Mr. Gabriel’s contract to December 31, 
2009 



Public Safety and Emergency Services Committee Minutes for July 27, 2009 
2 

 
Motion to support request: Leg. Kastler 
Second: Leg. Mary Flett  
Vote: Unanimous 

 
B. 911 ai Contract – Vorstar  
Director Mike Allen requested support for a resolution awarding a professional services contract to 
Vorstar Corporation, Inc. at a cost not to exceed $9,800. The service would allow subscribers to 
provide additional personal information to emergency responders.  Leg. Chm. Leemann asked how 
the availability of this service will be made public.  Mr. Allen noted that would be the 
responsibility of Vorstar, which would likely conduct an outreach, informational campaign. 
Motion to support request: Leg. Kastler 
Second: Leg. Doyle 
Vote: Unanimous 

 
C. Resolution-Motorola  
Director Mike Allen requested support for a resolution authorizing negotiation with Motorola for 
development of a final design and detailed costs for the new Emergency Radio Communications 
System.  Leg. Doyle asked “Why Motorola?”  Mr. Allen responded that Motorola is already under 
State Contract and has also been selected through RFP’s by other counties of the consortium. 
 
Leg. Walker moved to amend the resolution to name Leg. Hayes to the negotiation team.  Leg. 
Chm. Leemann suggested that if any legislator is selected to serve on the negotiations team, it 
should start with Committee Chairman Paul Santore.  Leg. Walker’s motion failed for lack of a 
second. 
Motion to support request: Leg. Doyle 
Second: Leg. Kastler 
Vote: Unanimous 
 
D. Radio Project Update  
Director Allen said he expects to have both Motorola’s proposal and the estimated cost for 
“rebanding” at the August Committee Meeting.  This should provide a factual basis for 
comparison. He added that a current inventory of needs is being compared to a previous inventory. 
Mr. Allen noted that fire departments are being encouraged to consider a joint funding application 
to FEMA for some of the anticipated communication system costs. Leg. Flett asked if plans 
include both cities, Mr. Allen said “yes”.  Leg. Kastler asked how many radios would be involved. 
Mr. Allen said that’s not yet clear.  Leg. Walker asked if the towers were painted, yet.  Mr. Allen 
said “yes”.  Leg. Gearsbeck asked how much the radios are expected to cost.  Mr. Allen said a 
rough figure would be $7 million.  Administrator Church noted that his office is working with the 
County Treasurer and our fiscal advisors to explore several funding options. 
 
E. 911 Center Activities 
Director Allen provided a monthly summary of activity in the 911 Office (copy attached). 
 

5. Sheriff’s Office:  
A. Resolution Opposing State Legislation A903 and S3842 - Jail Mandates  
Undersheriff Lighthall explained that bills A903 and S3842 have passed their respective State 
Houses and propose to create an additional oversight for health policies and practices in jails. Mr. 
Lighthall expressed deep concern that since the Commissioner of Corrections already performs 
that function; this proposed duplication will provide confusion rather than clarity, unnecessary 



Public Safety and Emergency Services Committee Minutes for July 27, 2009 
3 

expense rather than efficiencies, and impose a new round of unfunded state mandates on local 
taxpayers.  
Motion to send an urgent request to Gov. Paterson to veto A903 and S3842 as unfunded 
mandates:  Leg. Doyle 
Second:   Leg. Lockwood 
Vote:   Unanimous 
 
B. Budget Modification – Uniforms/Clothing 
Undersheriff Lighthall presented a request for a budget modification transferring $11,000 from 
medical fees to the Uniform/Clothing line.   
Motion to support request: Leg. Doyle 
Second: Leg. Flett 
Vote: Unanimous 
 

6. Adjournment: 2:41 PM 
Motion to adjourn:  Leg. Walker 
Second:  Leg. Doyle 
Vote: Unanimous   



Public Safety and Emergency Services Committee Minutes for July 27, 2009 
4 



Public Safety and Emergency Services Committee Minutes for July 27, 2009 
5 

 



Public Safety and Emergency Services Committee Minutes for July 27, 2009 
6 

 
 


